
City of Baraboo Common Council Agenda 1

AGENDA
CITY OF BARABOO COMMON COUNCIL

Council Chambers, 101 South Blvd., Baraboo, Wisconsin
Tuesday, September 11, 2018, 7:00 P.M.

Regular meeting of the Common Council, Mayor Palm presiding.
Notices sent to Council members: Wedekind, Kolb, Plautz, Sloan, Petty, Ellington, Alt, Zolper, and Thurow

Notices sent to City Staff and Media: Atty. Truman, Adm. Geick, Clerk Zeman, Finance Director Haggard, City Engineer
Pinion, Utility Super. Peterson, Street Super. Gilman, Police Chief Schauf, Parks & Recreation Dir. Hardy, City
Treasurer Laux, Fire Chief Kevin Stieve, Library Director Jessica Bergin, CDA Director, the News Republic, WBDL,
and WRPQ, Kris Jackson, Gail Johnson, John Van Hoosen, Bryan Schwarz, Nathan Lund, Jeff Nachtigal
Notices sent to other interested parties: Citizen Agenda Group, Media Agenda Group

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES - (Voice Vote): August 28, 2018

APPROVAL OF AGENDA (Voice vote):

COMPLIANCE WITH OPEN MEETING LAW NOTED

PUBLIC HEARING – The Mayor announces that this is the published date and time to hear public comment
concerning the request to rezone the 2-acre parcel on the east side of Vine Street in the NE1/4 of the SE1/4 of
Section 2, T11N, R6E, located at 729 Vine Street, from R-1A Single Family Residential to NRO Neighborhood
Residential Office classification.

PRESENTATION –
The Mayor will present the Baraboo GEM Award to Matt & Rachelle Fearson and read a Flood Response
Proclamation.

PUBLIC INVITED TO SPEAK (Any citizen has the right to speak on any item of business that is on the agenda
for Council action if recognized by the presiding officer.)

MAYOR'S COMMENTS – The Mayor would like to congratulate the following employees on their anniversaries
with the City of Baraboo.

 Kris Jackson, Public Works/Engineering Secretary – 25 years

 Gail Johnson, Library – 10 years

 John VanHoosen, Civic Center – 10 years

 Bryan Schwarz, Water Utility – 10 years

 Nathan Lund, Police Dept. – 10 years

 Jeff Nachtigal, Public Works – 5 years

CONSENT AGENDA (roll call)
CA-1…Approve the accounts payable to be paid in the amount of $_____________

CA-2…Approve exemption from County Library tax for 2019.

1



City of Baraboo Common Council Agenda 2

ORDINANCES ON 2ND READING
SRO-1…Amend §17.18(4)(a) and the Zoning District Map rezoning tax parcel 206-1152-90000 from MH-P
Manufactured Homes-Park District to a B-3 Highway Oriented Business District.

SRO-2…Revise §7.02(2)(b)2, the Official Traffic Map, to provide for no parking on portions of Walnut Street, Moore
Street, and Summit Street.

NEW BUSINESS ORDINANCES
NBO-1…Amend §17.18(4)(a) and the Zoning District Map rezoning tax parcel 206-1096-00000 from R-1A Single-
Family Residential to NRO Neighborhood Business/Office district.

OTHER ACTIONABLE ITEMS:

MAYOR, ADMINISTRATOR, AND COUNCIL COMMENTS

REPORTS, PETITIONS, AND CORRESPONDENCE - The City acknowledges receipt and distribution of
the following: Minutes from the Following Meetings -

Copies of these meeting minutes are included in your packet:
Finance/Personnel 08-14-18 BEDC 07-31-18, 08-02-18
Plan Commission 07-17-18 Administrative Comm.08-10-18

Copies of these meeting minutes are on file in the Clerk's office:
CDA Exec. Comm. 08-25-17, 09-29-17, 11-07-17, 12-29-17, 01-02-18, 01-12-18,

01-26-18, 02-23-18, 03-06-18, 03-23-18, 05-25-18

CDA Loan Review Comm. 11-07-17, 03-16-18, 06-05-18
CDA Board 11-07-17, 03-20-18, 04-02-18, 05-07-18, 08-07-18
CDA Finance 12-05-17

Petitions and Correspondence Being Referred:
INFORMATION

ADJOURNMENT (Voice Vote)
Brenda Zeman, City Clerk

For more information about the City of Baraboo, visit our website at www.cityofbaraboo.com.

September 2018
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

9 10 11 12 13 14 15
Park & Rec. Finance

Council

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
SCDC Library BID UW Campus

23 24 25 26 27 28 29
Public Safety Finance

Council

Ambulance Emergency Mgmt.

Public Arts

30 1 2 3 4 5 6

2



City of Baraboo Common Council Agenda 3

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE - Any person who has a qualifying disability as defined by the Americans with
Disabilities Act who requires the meeting or materials at the meeting to be in an accessible location or format, should
contact the City Clerk at 101 South Blvd., or phone 355-2700 during regular business hours at least 48 hours before
the meeting so reasonable arrangements can be made to accommodate each request.

Agenda jointly prepared by D. Munz and B. Zeman
Agenda posted on 09/07/2018

3



C ityof B araboo C ou ncilM inu tes A u gu st28 ,2018 V olu me 42 P age #40

Council Chambers, Municipal Building, Baraboo, Wisconsin
Tuesday, August 28, 2018 –7:00 p.m.

M ayorP alm called the regu larmeetingof C ou ncilto ord er.
Rollcallwas taken.
C ou ncilM embers P resent:W ed ekind ,Kolb,P lau tz,Sloan,P etty,Ellington,Zolper,Thu row
C ou ncilM embers A bsent:A lt
O thers P resent:A d m.Geick,A ttny.Tru man,C lerkZeman,C .H aggard ,W .P eterson,T.P inion,J.
B ergin,Renee B emis,members of the press and others.

The P led ge of A llegiance was given.

M oved byKolb,second ed byW ed ekind and carried to approve the minu tes of A u gu st14,2018 .

M oved byW ed ekind ,second ed byKolb and carried to approve the agend a.

Compliance with the Open Meeting Law was noted.

PUBLIC HEARING –The M ayoropened the P u blic H earingconcerningthe requ esttorezone 5.3-
acre parcelof land on the north sid e of Sou th B lvd .between STH 136 (formerly USH 12)and
C ommerce P arkway,located at1420 Sou thB lvd .from itscu rrentM H -P M anu factu red H ome P ark
zoningclassification to aB -3H ighwayO riented B u siness ZoningC lassification.

N o one spoke and the M ayorclosed the P u blic H earing.

PUBLIC INVITED TO SPEAK –Renee B emis,300 W aterStreet,B araboo.Renee is one of the
owners of the D riftless Glen D istillery and is speakingtonightabou tthe award s thatthey have
received and how it’simpactingthe C ityofB araboo.Inc.magazine,anationalpu blication,tellsyou
the fastestgrowingcompanies in the cou ntry.To be inclu d ed in the Inc.5000 is ahu ge d eal,and
D riftlessGlenwasinthe Inc.500,ranked nu mber316.Theywere alsorated the 13thfastestgrowing
food & beverage companyin the cou ntryand the 3rd fastestgrowingcompanyin allof W isconsin.
She alsonoted thattheysenttheirspiritstothe L ond onSpiritsC ompetitionand theyd id ashou tou t
sayingthatD riftlessGlenisone ofthe Top10,mu sttrybrand sinallofthe United States.Theyare
in 654 d ifferentplacements in 10 d ifferentstates with5more tobe opened nextyearand theyhave
close to 5,000 barrels u p.C ou rierM agazine,whichis anationalmagazine fortou rism,is goingto
d o an article on D riftless Glen as aplace to come and see.L astly,theywere recentlycontacted by
the Ellen D eGeneres Show as beingone of their“mu sthave”prod u cts.

MAYOR’S COMMENTS –The M ayornoted thatP olice C hiefSchau fand Fire C hiefStieve are not
here this eveningand thatis becau se they are assistingwiththe recentflood ing.C hief Stieve is
assistingSau kC ou ntyEmergencyM anagementO perationswithlocalflood ingand C hiefSchau fis
assistingin H illsboro.

CONSENT AGENDA
Resolution No. 18-61

TH A T the A ccou nts P ayable,in the amou ntof $ 8 98 ,8 00.51 as recommend ed forpaymentby
the Finance/P ersonnelC ommittee,be allowed and ord ered paid .

Resolution No. 18-62
Thatthe followingbu d getamend ments are au thorized :

 1stQ u arter,2018 W ater& SewerUtilities:

4



C ityof B araboo C ou ncilM inu tes A u gu st28 ,2018 V olu me 42 P age #41

Budgetary Transfers:

Department Account Number Account Name
Original
Budget Change

Amended
Budget

Source of Funds: Reduction in Other Appropriation within Same Fund

W aterM eterExpense 97 0-37 -66300-310-000 O ffice Su pplies 150 (30) 120

(30)

Use of Funds

W aterM eterExpense 97 0-37 -66300-343-000 P ostage 100 30 130

30

Transfer funds to cover budget overages

-

Budgetary Transfers:

Department Account Number Account Name
Original
Budget Change

Amended
Budget

Source of Funds: Reduction in Other Appropriation within Same Fund

SewerH ead works O peratingExp. 960-36-8 2200-250-000 Repair& M aintServ-Equ ipment 5,500 (1,500) 4,000

SewerP lantM aint 960-36-8 3400-260-000 Repair& M aintServ-B u ild ings 4,000 (1,7 00) 2,300

(3,200)

Use of Funds

SewerH ead works O peratingExp. 960-36-8 2200-260-000 Repair& M aintServ-B u ild ings 1,500 1,500 3,000

SewerP lantM aint 960-36-8 3400-250-000 Repair& M aintServ-Equ ipment 5,500 1,7 00 7 ,200

3,200

Transfer funds to cover budget overages

M oved byP etty,second ed byW ed ekind and carried thatthe C onsentA gend abe approved -8
ayes.

2ND READING ORDINANCES
M oved by Sloan,second ed by P lau tz and carried u nanimou sly to approve the 2nd read ing of
Ordinance No. 2497 approvingthe revised SpecialEventL icense O rd inance.

M oved by Kolb,second ed by W ed ekind and carried u nanimou sly to approve the 2nd read ingof
Ordinance No. 2498 revisingthe parkingrestrictions on A shStreetbetween W aterStreetand 1st

Street.

NEW BUSINESS
Resolutions:

Resolution No. 18-63
THAT, the revised C ommon C ou ncilM ember’s H and bookd ated Ju ly31,2018 be ad opted .

5



C ityof B araboo C ou ncilM inu tes A u gu st28 ,2018 V olu me 42 P age #42

NOW THEREFORE,IT IS H EREB Y RESO L V ED by the C ommon C ou ncilof the C ity of

B araboo thatthe C ity A ttorney is au thorized to ad optthe revised C ommon C ou ncilM ember’s

H and bookd ated Ju ly31,2018 .

M oved byEllington,second ed byP lau tz and carried thatResolution No. 18-63 be approved -
8 ayes.

Resolution No. 18-64
THAT the M ayorand C ity C lerkare au thorized to sign an A greementforthe u se of C ity of

B araboo’sC ontainerB ased TrainingP ropbetweenthe C ityofB araboo,D eltonFire and A mbu lance
C ommission and D elton Fire D epartment.

M oved byW ed ekind ,second ed bySloanand carried thatResolution No. 18-64 be approved -
8 ayes.

Resolution No. 18-65
THAT the P roposalof C learyB u ild ingC orp,in the amou ntof $60,531 is herebyaccepted

and allotherbid s are rejected .

M oved by Sloan,second ed byP ettyand carried thatResolution No. 18-65 be approved -8
ayes.

Resolution No. 18-66
THAT the M ayorand C ityC lerkare herebyau thorized to sign the attached A greement

B etween the C ityof B araboo and D riftless Glen D istilleryto calcu late seweru se charges based
on the actu alvolu me of wastewaterthatis d ischarged from theirfacilityto the sanitarysewer
system.

M oved byKolb,second ed byW ed ekind and carried thatResolution No. 18-66 be approved -
8 ayes.

Ordinances:
M oved byW ed ekind ,second ed bySloan and carried u nanimou slyto approve the 1st

read ingof Ordinance No. 2499 amend ing§ 17 .18 (4)(a)and the ZoningD istrictM aprezoning
tax parcel206-1152-90000 from M H -P M anu factu red H omes –P arkd istrictto aB -3H ighway
O riented B u siness d istrict.

TH E C O M M O N C O UN C IL O F TH E C ITY O F B A RA B O O ,W ISC O N SIN ,D O
O RD A IN A S FO L L O W S:

1. Section 17 .18 (4)(a),O rd inances is hereby revised to reflectthe following changes:Tax
P arcel206-1152-90000,the followingd escribed 5.3-acre parcellocated at1420 Sou th
B lvd ,from its cu rrentM H -P M anu factu red H ome P arkzoningclassification to aB -3
H ighwayO riented B u siness zoningclassification:.

A part of the SE ¼ of the SE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 3, T11N, R6E, City of Baraboo,

Sauk County, Wisconsin described as follows:

The SE ¼ of the SE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 3, T11N, R6E except Sauk County6



C ityof B araboo C ou ncilM inu tes A u gu st28 ,2018 V olu me 42 P age #43

Certified Survey Map No. 650 and except the easterly 511.34 feet of the northerly 140.1

feet of said SE ¼ of the SE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 3.

2. This O rd inance shalltake effectu pon passage and pu blication as provid ed bylaw.

M oved by Sloan,second ed byP ettyand carried u nanimou slyto approve the 1stread ingof
Ordinance No. 2500 revising§ 7 .02(2)(b)2,the O fficialTraffic M ap,toprovid e fornoparkingona
portions of W alnu tStreet,M oore Street,and Su mmitStreet.

TH E C O M M O N C O UN C IL O FTH E C ITY O FB A RA B O O ,W ISC O N SIN ,D O O RD A IN
A S FO L L O W S:

1. Revise Section 7 .02(2)(b)2,the O fficialTraffic M ap,to show no parkingatthe following
locations:

The eastsid e of W alnu tStreetbetween P arkwayand apoint130 sou thof Elm
Street..

The westsid e of M oore Streetfrom apoint120 feetsou thof Sou thB lvd to a
point220 feetsou thof Sou thB lvd .

B othsid es of Su mmitStreetfrom apoint100 feetsou thof 10 th A venu e to 10 th

A venu e.

2. This O rd inance shalltake effectu pon passage and pu blication as provid ed bylaw.

MAYOR, ADMINISTRATOR, AND COUNCIL COMMENTS
A d m.Geicknoted thatas of now we d on’thave anymajorwaterissu es arou nd the C itybu twe are
watchingthings.There are sand bags available from Sau kC ou ntyand can be picked u pfrom the
H ighwayShop.If anyone has anyproblems theyshou ld give acallto d ispatch,911.

REPORTS and MINUTES
The C ityofficiallyacknowled ges receiptand d istribu tion of the following:
Monthly Reports for July, 2018 from –Treasu rer,Fire D ept.,P olice D ept.

Minutes from the Following Meetings –
Finance/Personnel Committee –Dennis Thurow Committee Rm #205 August 14, 2018
Members Present: P etty,Sloan,Thu row
Absent:
Others Present: M ayorP alm, E.Geick,E.Tru man,C .H aggard ,B .Zeman,K.Stieve,P .C annon,L .L au x,T.P inion
Call Meeting to Order –A ld .P ettycalled the meetingto ord erat6:00 p.m.notingcompliance withthe O pen M eetingL aw.
M oved byThu row,second ed bySloan to approve the minu tes of Ju ly24,2018 .M otion carried u nanimou sly.M oved bySloan,
second ed byThu row to approve the agend a.M otion carried u nanimou sly.

Action Items
a) Accounts Payable –M oved bySloan,second ed byThu row to recommend to C ou ncilapprovalof the

accou nts payable for$824,831.82. M otion carried u nanimou sly.

b) WI Dept. of Administration CDBG (Community Development Block Grant) –RLF (Revolving Loan Fund)
Close Program –C D A D irectorP atC annonexplained thatcompliance u nd erthe cu rrentprogram isverycomplex and7



C ityof B araboo C ou ncilM inu tes A u gu st28 ,2018 V olu me 42 P age #44

thatthe D epartmentofA d ministration(D O A )estimatesthatthere is$100 milliond ollarsinthisprogram acrossthe state.
They also estimate thatbetween 50-60% of these fu nd s are sittingin the bankas cashand are notbeingu sed as the
program wasd esigned for,arevolvingloan.Inord ertotryand recircu late the money,H UD recommend ed thatthe D O A
su bmitan application to close ou tthe C D B G-RL F program.Und erthe program they are givingu s 2 options:1)W e
package u pthe loansand hand itallbackovertothe State or2)W henthe applicationisapproved ,we pickad ate withina
2 yearperiod tosend them acheckforthe valu e ofou rou tstand ingloansplu sou rcashretu rningallofthe money.O nce
we tu rnthe moneyovertothe State,we thenhave ownershipofthe loansastheycome backinpaymentstou s.The loan
revenu es overthe life of the loan become d e-fed eralized and come backto the C ityforhoweverwe wishto u se those
fu nd s.P atisestimatingwe have abou t$7 50,000 inthisprogram rightnow.W hatthe D O A planstod owiththe retu rned
fu nd sistoplace them inatru staccou ntforeachmu nicipalitythatretu rnsthe fu nd s.The C itycanthenpu tinforaC D B G
eligible projectonanon-competitive basisand receive ou rmoneyback.W e canalsopu tinforacompetitive basisC D B G
loanand u se ou rmoneyasamatch–these u su allyrequ ire aone toone match.The D O A hassu bmitted theirapplication
and H UD has45d aystoaccept,reject,oraskforad d itionalinformation.The D O A islookingatstartingthisO ctober1,
2018 u nlessitisnotapproved bythen.Ifit’sapproved afterthisd ate,itwou ld startwhateverthe approvald ate is.A ld .
Sloanconfirmed thatifwe send the moneybacktothe state,we thenbecome the ownerofthe loanpaymentsbu twe can
borrow the moneybackfrom the state.P .C annon ad vised the C ommittee thatthis wou ld be grantmoney.A ld .Sloan
qu estioned the income stream and if this wou ld be GeneralFu nd s and P .C annon noted thatthis wou ld be u pto the
governingbod ytomake thisd etermination.The C D A ’srecommend ationisthatwe startou rownRevolvingL oanFu nd
and pu tou rown requ irements on the process.A tthis time,there are alotof internald ecisions thatneed to be mad e.
M oved bySloan,second ed byThu row and carried u nanimou slyto postpone u ntilwe have ad d itionalinformation.

c) Long Term Revenue Forecast, Capital Planning, and Wage Projections –A d m.Geickpresented arevised C apital
ImprovementP lan based on the cu rrentgoals forthe C ity of B araboo.Significantchanges to the plan inclu d e:The
Fire/EM S projecthas been pu shed to the topand is cu rrentlysched u led in 3phases,the UW Theatre P rojecthas been
revised tosettingasid e $50,000 peryearforthe nextfew years,and the libraryhasmoved to2028 forthe actu albu ild ing.
A ld .Sloan wou ld like to see the L ibraryfu nd ingred u ced to $5,000,000 and has requ ested thatwe getan opinion from
Ehler’sorM ood y’sastowhatborrowingthismoney,whetheritbe forthe fire stationorthe library,willd otoou rbond
rating.This was presented as informationalonly,no action was taken atthis time.

Informational Items - City Attorney’s report on insurance claims
 O ne claim is pend ingsettlementrightnow in the amou ntof$48 5.30.This is foraclaim mad e forsome d amaged plu mbing.

A tty.Tru man d etermined thatitwas in the bestinterestofthe C ityto settle this claim.
 O ne otherpend ingclaim thatA tty.Tru man prefers to notspeakon atthis time,she is cu rrentlywaitingforsome ad d itional

information.
 O ne claim was filed tod ayhoweveritappears to be incomplete.

Committee Comments
A ld .P ettywou ld like on the nextagend ato lookatElected O fficials compensation.

Adjournment –M oved bySloan,second ed byThu row and carried to ad jou rn at6:38 pm.

Minutes of the Public Safety Committee Meeting July 23, 2018
Members Present: P hilW ed ekind and M ike P lau tz,and Tom Kolb.Others Present: Ed Geick,C hief Schau f,C hief Stieve,
A ttorneyTru man,Tom P inion,W ad e P eterson,TonyGilman,D anielZech,GaryM eeker,B u ckSweeney,Jim Smith,N ancy
M istele,Renee B emu s,Tom Fitzwilliams,and B en B romley.

Call to Order -C ommittee C hairmanP hilW ed ekind called the meetingtoord erat1:00 P .M .atthe C ityH allC ommittee Room,101
Sou thB lvd .,B araboo,W isconsin.C ompliance withthe O penM eetingL aw wasnoted .Itwasmoved byKolb,second ed byP lau tzto
approve the agend aas posted .M otion carried u nanimou sly.Itwas moved byP lau tz,second ed byKolb approve the minu tes ofthe
Ju ne 11,2018 meeting.M otion carried u nanimou sly.

New Business
a. C onsid errevisingparkingregu lations on A shStreetbetween W aterStreetand 1stStreet.(D anielZech)–Engineer

P inion presented the backgrou nd forthe requ est.H e said cu rrentlythe 2-hrparkingextend s from the B araboo Riverto
W aterStreets,itthen leapfrogs one block,and then goes from 1stto 4th.H e said thatthe revision wou ld be A shStreet
from the B araboo Riverto 4thStreeton bothsid es of the street.Kolb moved to approve.D anielZechsaid thatthere is a
sign thatstates no parkingfrom 2 a.m.u ntil6 a.m.,bu titis neverenforced .P lau tz second ed the motion.M otion
carried u nanimou sly.

b. Review and recommend ation forrevisingthe C ity’s ord inance regard ingSpecialEvents –A ttorneyTru man presented
the backgrou nd on the issu e.She said thatthe cu rrentord inance is extremelyvagu e.She said thatanytime there is any
eventon pu blic orprivate property,itis consid ered aspecialeventand alicense has to be obtained .Tru man said that
the C ityd oes notwantto regu late everythingthathappens on private properties.Tru man said one of the biggest
changes to the proposed revision is to change the d efinition of whatconstitu tes aspecialevent.She said thatthere are
new clarifications in the proposed ord inance;one is thataspecialeventmightnotju sttake place on one d ay.She stated
thatanotherproposed clarification the two d ifferentcosts associated withspecialevents.The appeals process was

8



C ityof B araboo C ou ncilM inu tes A u gu st28 ,2018 V olu me 42 P age #45

d iscu ssed .A fteralengthyd iscu ssion,P lau tz moved ,Kolb second ed to recommend the proposed revisions to the C ity’s
ord inance regard ingSp0ecialEvents as presented .M otion carried u nanimou sly.

c. Review and recommend ation forrevisingthe C ity’s ord inance regu latinglou d and u nnecessarynoise –A ttorney
Tru man presented the proposed ord inance revisions.She said thatshe d id workon the revisions withthe P olice C hief.
She said thatthe C hief su ggested thatno noise permits between the hou rs of 10:00 p.m.and 6:30 a.m.be granted .
W ed ekind asked whatwou ld be d one withthe FairA ssociation;Tru man said thatis somethingthatwou ld have to be
d iscu ssed .Tru man said atthis time there is no fee associated itthe permit;however,the C ommittee cou ld consid er
changingafee.Itwas moved byKolb,second ed byP lau tz to bringproposed revisions backto the C ommittee in
A u gu stforpossible recommend ation.M otion carried u nanimou sly.

d . Review and recommend ation of GaryM eeker’s requ estforasecond d rivewayto theirsingle-familyresid entialproperty
at1018 3rd Street–GaryM eekerstated thathe wou ld requ estto installthe second d rivewaythatwou ld be blacktop;
howeverwou ld like to have gravelu ntilitis compacted .W ed ekind said thathe has been to the C ommittee twice and
was d enied .H e stated thatitis policyone d rivewayperlot,u nless itis acornerlot.W ed ekind feels if the permitwere
given to M eeker,itwou ld setapreced ence.D iscu ssion of othersecond d riveways tookplace,P inion said thatthe last
two times thatthis was before the C ommittee,M eekerwas onlyaskingforacu rb cu t;however,this time he is asking
foran entire d riveway,itwas stated thatthis lotis oversized .Kolb felthe cou ld be moved in terms of oversized lots,
bu tnotan au tomatic approval.P lau tz feels thatthe oversize lotwou ld be enou ghof an exception thatitwou ld seta
preced ence.P lau tz moved to approve the requ estforasecond d rivewayat1018 3rd Streetbased on the C ommittee’s
d iscu ssion of beingan oversized lot.Kolb second ed the motion.Kolb feels thatif the C ommittee is goingto d o this an
oversize lotneed s to be d efined and the C ityneed s to startenforcingd riveways thatexistthatshou ld not.Kolb asked
M eekerhow longhe feltitwou ld take to pave the d riveway.M eekersaid thathe wou ld d o itas soon as he cou ld ;Kolb
said he d id notwantitto sitallwinter.Kolb asked foran amend mentto the motion thatthe d rivewayis completed
within 60 d ays of the startd ate.P lau tz second ed the amend ed motion.M otion carried 2 to 1,W ed ekind votingno.

e. D iscu ssion withD riftless Glen D istillery,L L C regard ingwastewaterd ischarge from the D riftless Glen D istilleryat300
W aterStreetand how theypropose to complywiththe Su bchapterIII:B araboo SewerUtilityin C hapter1.3of the
C ity’s GeneralC od e of O rd inances –P inion said this has been on ongoingd iscu ssion withD riftless Glen abou thigh
strengthcond ition of the wastewaterthattheywou ld like to d ischarge to the sanitarysewer.H e said thattheyhave
mad e efforts to tryto provid e more consistentprod u ct.P inion presented the C ommittee withthe limits of the three
parameters to safelyd ischarge,alongwiththe d istillery’s proposed d ischarge the lasttime theyran abatch.P inion said
thatwiththe nu mbers is has an effecton the operation of the TreatmentP lant,so the d istilleryhas been hau lingitoff
site.H e said lookingatimposingthe ord inance requ irements and lookatthe high-strengthsu rcharge rates;itis a
significantlyhighercostto the d istillery.B u ckSweeneysaid he has been workingwiththe C ityto find solu tions.H e
said thatif asolu tion is fou nd so thatthe W astewaterP lantcan take the waste withou tu psetthen he feels thatthe
d istillerywou ld have to go to the C ou ncilfrom apolicypointof view to see if itcan be d one,cou ld the C itygive them
arate thatwou ld allow them to be competitive in the marketplace.Jim Smithpresented the proced u re of the 2017 water
u sage.H e then explained the d istillation system.Smiththen presented whatis beingproposed to allow the d istilleryto
d ischarge into the C ity’s system.Kolb qu estioned meteringiton the d ischarge.P inion said thattheyare talkingabou t
u singameteringpu mpso thatitis aconstantlow-flow ou tof the facility.H e asked if there was anythingas faras flow
proportion and samplingand if theywillbe pacingthat.Smithsaid thathe feltitwou ld be easyto period icallysample
the tank.Smithsaid thatitis arefrigerated samplerthatcan be based on flow ortime.P lau tz asked if this wou ld satisfy
P eterson’s concerns.P eterson said thatnothinghas been d iscu ssed abou tmoney.Sweeneysaid thatthe moneyissu e
wou ld reallybe u pto the C ou ncil.P eterson said thatitis in blackand white in the ord inance.Sweeneysaid thatit
wou ld be avariance to the ord inance.P eterson said thattheyare askingallthe resid ents of the C ityto significantly
su bsid ize theirbu siness.Kolb u nd erstand s thatthe d istillerywou ld be payingthe higherrates,bu tonlyforthe higher
testd ischarge.Geickasked Sweeneyif theyare proposinganykind of rate.Itwas stated thatitcostapproximately$57 5
to hau loff-site.P inion said thatthe C ity’s rate is based on gross waterconsu mption,notnetwaterd ischarge,so there is
no cred itbu ilt-in forthe d ed u ctmeterthatis beingproposed .P inion said thatitis partof the Utilitybu d getthis year
forarate stu d y,whichwilltake 4 or5months to complete.Therefore,based on the cu rrentlysu rcharge rates,there is a
d ifference,itis highertru ckingoff-site,more convenientobviou slyto d ischarge locally,bu the d oesn’tknow how the
new nu mbers willcompare to whatthe cu rrentsu rcharge rates are.Geickasked Sweeneyif he was agreeable to the
conceptof whathe was talkingabou twou ld be somethingthatcou ld be consid ered in the proposed rate stu d y.
Sweeneysaid thathe wou ld n’thave aproblem lookingatitfrom arate stu d ypointof view.H e said thathe thinks
meteringitself is alotless controversial,itfeels thatitis fair.P inion thatthis is d iscu ssion item and no action can take
place to,bu tasked when theywanted to startd ischargingto the sewer.Sweeneysaid theywou ld like to getthe d ed u cts
approved so thattheyare notpayinghighstrengthwaste,regard less of where theyare takingit,becau se theyshou ld be
payinghigh-strengthwaste becau se theyare hau lingit.P inion said cu rrentlytheyare hau lingoff-site,bu tare paying
forgross waterconsu mption on the sewersid e.Therefore,the firstthingto d o is to installthe rightmeters,meterthem
the rightway,and thatbecomes astraightforward d ed u ct.H e said thatthe d istillerywou ld continu e ithau litoff-site,
becau se the C ityis notprepared to make anyspecialrate withou tcru nchingthe nu mbers.Sweeneysaid thattheywou ld
like to have aseatatthe table forthe proposed rate stu d y.A fteralengthyd iscu ssion,the d istilleryhas agreed to install
ad ed u ctmeter,and willgive P eterson the amou ntof alcoholbarreled .A ttorneyTru man said thatshe wou ld meetwith
Sweeneyto d raftu pso everythingis clearwithno confu sion as to whatis goingto be d one.

9



C ityof B araboo C ou ncilM inu tes A u gu st28 ,2018 V olu me 42 P age #46

f. Review and approvalof monthlyB illingA d ju stments/C red its forSewerand W aterC u stomers forJu ne 2018 –Itwas
moved byKolb,second ed byP lau tz to approve the monthlybillingad ju stments/cred its forSewerand W atercu stomers
forJu ne 2018 as presented .M otion carried u nanimou sly.

Reports
a. UtilitySu perintend ent’s Report–P eterson said thathis crew pu ttogetheratemporarysystem thatis the bestwhile

u nd erconstru ction.H e said constru ction shou ld be d one in N ovember.H e said he received two proposals forthe rate stu d y
and willbe movingforward .

b. StreetSu perintend ent’s Report–Gilman said thatD ave Smithstarted employmenton Ju ly9th.Gilman presented is
Ju ne activityreport.H e said thatallparkinglots were finished before the parad e.

c. P olice C hief’s Report–Schau f said thathe is workingon fillingthree vacancies.H e said the parad e wentwellwithno
problems.

d . Fire C hief’s Report–C hief Stieve said there the d epartmenthas three openings to fill.H e said there has been one
retirement,two resignations.A s partof the Fire D epartmentO perations Stu d y,the workon the SO G continu es.

ADJOURNMENT –Kolb moved ,P lau tz second ed to ad jou rn at2:54 p.m.M otion carried .

Board of Review July 19, 2018
P resent:Zeman,Kolb,P alm,W ed ekind
A bsent:Thu row
A lso P resent:StewartH amelof TylerTechnologies,A tty.Tru man

M ayorP alm called the meetingto ord erat1:00 p.m.notingcompliance withthe open meetinglaw.

SelectC hairperson:
W ed ekind moved ,Kolb second ed thatM ike P alm be nominated as C hair.The M ayorcalled forothernominations and none
were offered .M otion carried u nanimou sly.

P alm moved ,W ed ekind second ed thatTom Kolb be nominated as V ice C hair,and to close nominations.M otion carried
u nanimou sly.

M and atorytraining:A llmembers have metthe mand atorytrainingas follows:
P alm,Kolb,W ed ekind ,Thu row and Zeman on 05-10-2018

Zeman reviewed the A ssessor’s A ffid avitin the A ssessmentRolland the A ssessorexecu ted the affid avitu nd eroath.M oved by
W ed ekind ,second ed byKolb to acceptthe A ssessmentRoll.

Procedures of Operation
P alm reviewed the proced u res forthe B oard .

Objections Filed
The C lerkreported thatno cases had been filed priorto the statu toryd ead line.

Correction of 2017 Errors:
A ssessorH amelpresented information on C orrection of Errors for2017 :

P ersonalP ropA ccou nt206-90 7 2-13111,C oca-C olaC ompany,original$1,100,corrected to $0.M oved byKolb,second ed by
P alm and carried u nanimou slyto approve.

P ersonalP ropA ccou nt206-9393-00000,C oca-C olaC ompany,original$8 ,000,corrected to $0.M oved byKolb,second ed by
P alm and carried u nanimou slyto approve.

P ersonalP ropA ccou nt206-9129-12000,GE C apitalInfo TechSolu tions Inc,original$111,300 corrected to $0.M oved by
Kolb,second ed byW ed ekind and carried u nanimou slyto approve.

Reports
The M ayorreported thatthe A ssessmentRollwas open forpu blic inspection on Ju ne 12,2018 in the C lerk’s and A ssessor’s
O ffice,and P u blic L ibrary.O pen bookwas held on Ju ne 20,2018 byappointmentatthe A ssessor’s office.N otice of the B oard
of Review was posted atthe M u nicipalB u ild ing,L ibrary,C ivic C enterand C ou ncilC hambers and pu blished atleast15d ays
priorto the Ju ly19thmeeting.

Hearings –N one.

Reports
A ssessorH amelpresented the A nnu alA ssessmentReport.

M oved byKolb,second ed byW ed ekind and carried u nanimou slythatthe A ssessmentRollis approved as amend ed bythe
d eterminations mad e bythis B oard of Review and thatthe B oard ad jou rns at3:00 p.m.

10



C ityof B araboo C ou ncilM inu tes A u gu st28 ,2018 V olu me 42 P age #47

Baraboo Economic Development Commission May 3, 2018
I. Call to Meeting to Order and Note Compliance with Open Meeting Law

M ayorM ike P alm called the meetingto ord erat5:30 P M atthe B araboo M u nicipalB u ild ing,101 Sou thB lvd .,Room
205,B araboo,W I.The meetingwas noticed in conformance withW isconsin State Statu es regard ingopen meetings.

II. Roll Call
P resent: Umhoefer,A lt,A yar,B ingle,C aflisch,Johnson,P alm,Reppen,Taylor,W astlu nd ,W hite
A bsent: B owers,Jelle
O ther: Ed Geick,P atrickC annon

III. Approve Agenda
M otion to approve the agend aas presented withmovingitem g.a.to follow item IV
Taylor(1);Umhoefer(2)
A ye: A llviavoice vote
N ay: N one

IV. Approve Minutes
M otion to approve the minu tes as presented forM arch1,2018 as presented .
A lt(1);A yar(2)
A ye: A llviavoice vote
N ay: N one

Review of City Website by Baraboo High School students
JosephZechand M ychalH ainz,stu d ents atB araboo H ighSchoolprovid ed an analysis of the cu rrentcitywebsite.The
stu d ents had compared the website to othersites within the area.In ad d ition,theyreviewed areas su chas color,
balance of the site and u sability.Theiranalysis and comments were wellreceived .The C ityplans on incorporating
these comments into itfu tu re red esign of the site.

V. Public Comment
P eterV ed ro,Sau kC ou ntyC hairwas introd u ced as the new C ou ntyC hair.

VI. Old Business
a. Updates on Development Activities

M ayorP alm ind icated :
1. The C ityis featu red in this month’s L eagu e of M u nicipalities magazine.In ad d ition,bothhe and the C D A

D irectorhave been asked to presentatthe L eagu e’s C hief Execu tive C onference this su mmer.
2. The reconstru ction atthe airporthas begu n.The airportwillbe closed forseveralmonths while the

constru ction is completed .
3. The C ityhas hired anew L ibraryD irector.H ername is JessicaB ergin.
4. The H ospitalhas annou nced thattheywillbe closingthe A d d iction TreatmentC enterthis su mmer.

b. Updates from Plan Commission and Council
M ayorP alm u pd ated the items from the P lan C ommission and C ou ncilwere inclu d ed in the D evelopmentA ctivities
u pd ate.

c. Update from economic development partners and collaborators
1. M s.W astlu nd ind icated thatthe C D A has recentlyapproved anew loan.
2. M r.W hite ind icated thatapproximately165people attend ed the annu almeeting.A tthatmeetingthe annu al

B u siness A ward s were presented .In ad d ition,the C hamberis workingon aB rand ingprocess forthe city.
3. D r.A yarind icated thatthe FacebookM arketingclass was verysu ccessfu l.
4. M r.Reppen ind icated thatServo is cu rrentlyseekingad d itionalemployees.
5. M r.C annon ind icated thatthe initialplanningmeetingforthe C ou ntyprojectwiththe L ocalGovernment

Institu te is planned forM ay30,2018 .

d. Consideration of development of a strategic plan for BEDC
i. Ad Hoc Committee on Eastside Corridor Study

A meetingis planned forM ay24,2018 to continu e d iscu ssion of the plan implementation.

ii. Ad Hoc Committee on Business Walk
A fu tu re meetingis planned .
D iscu ssion willinclu d e the sign ord inance and the majorpoints of the B u siness W alk

VII. New Business
a. A tour of the new facility was provided at the conclusion of the meeting.

VIII. Update Partner Project Schedule 11



C ityof B araboo C ou ncilM inu tes A u gu st28 ,2018 V olu me 42 P age #48

N o u pd ate was provid ed .

IX. Commissioner and City Staff comments
M ayorP alm ind icated the State is now workingon O pportu nityZones.B araboo willqu alifyu nd erthatprogram.

X. Adjournment
M otion to ad jou rn the meetingwas mad e at6:47 pm.

W hite (1);Taylor(2)
A ye: A llviavoice vote
N ay: N one

Copies of these meeting minutes are on file in the Clerk's office:
P lan C ommission 07 -31-18 A mbu lance Finance & C omm 05-23-18
UW C omm. 07 -19-18 A mbu lance C omm 04-25-18
Friend s of the L ibrary 06-12-18 L ibraryN ominatingC omm 06-14-18
L ibraryB oard 0 7 -17 -18 P olice & Fire C omm 07 -16-18

PETITIONS, AND CORRESPONDENCE
· Petitions and Correspondence Being Referred -

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

ADJOURNMENT
M oved byEllington,second ed bySloan,and carried onvoice vote,thatthe meetingad jou rn.

B rend aZeman,C ityC lerk

12



P:\Council\Resolutions\9-11-18 Claims.docx

CA – 1

RESOLUTION NO. 2018 - Dated: September 11, 2018

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background:

Fiscal Note: (Check one) [ ] Not Required [ ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

THAT the Accounts Payable, in the amount of $ as recommended for payment by the
Finance/Personnel Committee, be allowed and ordered paid.

Offered By: Consent Approved by Mayor:
Motion:
Second: Certified by City Clerk:

13



P :\C ou ncil\Resolu tions\9-11-18 L ibraryTax A nnu alExemption.d oc

CA - 2

RESOLUTION NO. 2018 - Dated:September11,2018
The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background: The C ou ncilmu sttake actionannu allyd eclaringC itytaxpayersexemptfrom payingcou nty
librarytax to avoid d ou ble taxation of cityand cou ntytaxes su pportingsimilarservices.

Fiscal Note: (check one) [ x ] Not Required [ ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments:

W H EREA S,the Sau kC ou ntyB oard levies acou ntylibrarytax.

W H EREA S,Section43.64(2)(b)ofthe W isconsinStatu tesprovid esthatsu chu nitsofgovernment
whichlevy atax forpu blic library service and appropriate and expend foralibrary fu nd as d efined by
S43.52(1)d u ringthe yearforwhichthe cou ntytax levyismad e asu m atleastequ altothe cou ntytax rate
in the prioryearmu ltiplied by the equ alized valu ation of property in the C ity forthe cu rrentyear,may
applyforexemption from this tax;and

W H EREA S,the C ity of B araboo d oes levy alibrary tax in excess of the amou ntcalcu lated in
accord ance with43.64(2)(b).

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

TH A T the C ityofB araboobe ex empted from the paymentofanycou ntylibrarytax asprovid ed in
Section 43.64(2)(b)inasmu chas itwillexpend forits own libraryfu nd for2019 an amou ntin excess of
thatcalcu lated in accord ance with43.64(2)(b).Exemption from the paymentof said cou nty library tax
shallnotpreclu d e the C ityof B araboo’s participation in cou ntylibraryservice in allotherrespects.

Be it Further Resolved,thatconfirmed copiesofthe Resolu tionbe forward ed bythe C ityC lerkto
the Reed sbu rgP u blic L ibraryand to the Sau kC ou ntyC lerkbyO ctober19,2018 .

Offered by: Finance Approved:
Motion:
Second: Attest:

14



Baraboo (town) $203,134,700 City of Baraboo $815,339,000 $275,059 $579,276
Bear Creek (town) $67,413,600 Village of La Valle $15,361,400 $5,182 $18,000
Dellona (town) $210,568,000 Village of North Freedom $24,744,200 $8,348 $35,000
Delton (town) $303,971,400 Village of Plain $58,054,100 $19,585 $65,000
Excelsior (town) $138,614,000 Village of Prairie du Sac $390,817,400 $131,844 $327,817
Fairfield (town) $108,468,800 City of Reedsburg 574,880,700 $193,939 $404,495
Franklin (town) $74,429,600 Village of Rock Springs $21,753,500 $7,339 $25,000
Freedom (town) $57,332,800 Village of Sauk City $332,558,400 $112,190 $206,500
Greenfield (town) $103,379,300 Village of Spring Green $165,259,400 $55,751 $98,942
Honey Creek (town) $82,393,800 City of Wisconsin Dells** $334,362,700 * $112,799 $167,546
Ironton (town) $50,823,700 Village of Lake Delton** $1,180,822,100 $398,356 $391,009
La Valle (town) $357,155,800
Merrimac (town) $256,503,900
Prairie du Sac (town) $156,178,800
Reedsburg (town) $103,956,800
Spring Green (town) $180,393,700
Sumpter (town) $64,722,200 Wisconsin Dells $80,271,300 $27,080
Troy (town) $93,949,300
Washington (town) $60,743,100
Westfield (town) $52,927,000
Winfield (town) $83,979,900
Woodland (town) $83,988,100
Cazenovia (village) $655,100
Ironton (village) $7,359,900
Lime Ridge (village) $8,278,700
Loganville (village) $13,591,400
Merrimac (village) $75,601,800
West Baraboo (village) $96,217,000

TOTAL: $3,096,732,200

2018 Sauk County

Library Board Budget $1,044,698
Tax Levy Rate 0.000337355

08/21/18 - Mark E. Ibach, South Central Library System

The tax levy rate is determined by dividing the 2018 Sauk County Library Board budget by
the 2017 equalized value of those municipalities that pay the countylibrary tax. The 2018
equalized value of the municipalities with libraries is then multiplied by that tax levy rate to
determine the municipal appropriation needed in order to exempt from the county library tax
in 2019. The 2018 municipal library appropriations (taken from information provided on the
library's 2017 Annual Report) are provided as an indication of the municipality's current level
of support. -- Wisconsin Statues, s.43.64(2)(b)

Sauk County Library Tax Exemption Calculations for 2019

Municipalities that pay

county library tax 2017 Equalized Value

Reduced by TID

2018 Equalized

Value Reduced by

TID

2019 Needed

Appropriation

Municipalities with

libraries

*Wisconsin Dells has residents in four counties (Sauk, Columbia, Juneau, and Adams). The
equalized values from all four counties have been added to result in the figure above. See
below for the Sauk County portion only:

2018 Appropriation

Requested

**Wisconsin Dells and Lake Delton are a joint library. Due to Act 20, the municipalities that
fund joint libraries have a second method they can use to determine the necessary level at
which they need to fund the library in order to exempt from county library tax. Per
43.64(2)(c)(2), a municipality in a joint library may appropriate an amount that is not less
than the average of the last three years.



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Common Council of the City of Baraboo,
Wisconsin, will hold a public hearing in the Council Chambers in the Municipal Building located
at 135 Fourth Street, Baraboo, Wisconsin, on Tuesday, September 11, 2018, at 7:00 o'clock p.m.
for the purpose of giving an opportunity to any interested persons to be heard to consider the
following matter(s):

Request to rezone the 2-acre parcel on the east side of Vine Street in the NE ¼ of the SE

¼ of Section 2, T11N, R6E, located at 729 Vine, from R-1A Single Family Residential to NRO

Neighborhood Residential Office classification by Rabeka Hargraves and Jordan Darrow to allow

the operation of a beauty shop in the existing single-family residence.

Any person interested in obtaining additional information concerning the subject matter of
this hearing may contact the City Engineering Department at the Municipal Building, 101 South
Blvd, Baraboo, Wisconsin 53913.

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the Common Council may make substantial
changes in the zoning as a result of objection, debate and discussion at this hearing. For more
information about the City of Baraboo, visit our website at www.cityofbaraboo.com.

/s/ Brenda Zeman, City Clerk.

To be published on: August 29, and February 4, 2018 in the legal section.

15



P:\Council\Ordinances\9-11-18 729 Vine Street Rezone.docx

NBO - 1

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background: The new owners of the property at 729 Vine Street would like to establish a beauty
shop on the lower level of the existing residence. In the existing single-family residential districts,
beauty shops are specifically prohibited as both a home occupation as well as a professional home
office. The Zoning Code contains the following definition:

PERSONAL OR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. Personal service and professional service land uses include all
exclusively indoor land uses whose primary function is the provision of services directly to an individual on a
walk-in or on-appointment bases. Examples of such uses include professional services, insurance or financial
services, realty offices, medical offices, or clinics, veterinary clinics, barber shops, beauty shops, and related
land uses.

The NRO-Neighborhood Residential/Office zoning district allows Personal or Professional Services
as a Conditional Use. Accordingly, the property owners are seeking rezoning to an NRO zoning
classification so they can apply for a Conditional Use Permit.

The Plan Commission reviewed the proposed zoning change at their August 21, 2018 meeting, and
forwarded the matter to the Common Council for further consideration with a favorable
recommendation.
Fiscal Note: (check one) [x ] Not Required [ ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted Comments:

An Ordinance amending §17.18(4)(a) and the Zoning District Map rezoning tax parcel 206-
1096-00000 from R-1A Single-Family Residential to NRO Neighborhood Business/Office district.

THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BARABOO, WISCONSIN, DO
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

1. Section 17.18(4)(a), Ordinances is hereby revised to reflect the following changes: Tax
Parcel 206-1096-00000, the following described 2-0-acre parcel located at 729 Vine Street,
from its current R-1A Single-Family Residential zoning classification to an NRO
Neighborhood Residential/Office zoning classification:.

A part of the NE ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 2, T11N, R6E, City of Baraboo, Sauk County,

Wisconsin described as follows:

The northerly 266 feet of the NE ¼ of the SE ¼ Section 2, T11N, R6E west of Parkway

(formerly STH 123) and east of Vine Street.

2. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as provided by law.

Mayor’s Approval: ________________________

Clerk’s Certification: ________________________

I hereby certify that the foregoing Ordinance was duly passed by the Common Council of the
City of Baraboo on the ____ day of ________, 2018 and is recorded on page ___ of volume ___.

City Clerk: _________________________

16



Finance/Personnel Committee – Dennis Thurow Committee Rm #205 August 28, 2018

Members Present: Petty, Sloan, Thurow

Absent:

Others Present: Mayor Palm, E. Geick, E. Truman, B. Zeman, C. Haggard, T. Pinion, J. Bergin, John Ellington,

Rebekah Stelling, Beth Persche

Call Meeting to Order – Ald. Petty called the meeting to order at 6:15 p.m. noting compliance with the Open Meeting
Law. Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow to approve the minutes of August 14, 2018. Motion carried unanimously.
Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow to approve the agenda. Motion carried unanimously.

Action Items
a) Accounts Payable – Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow to recommend to Council approval of the

accounts payable for $898,800.51. Motion carried unanimously.

b) 2018 First Qtr. Water & Sewer Budget Amendments – The Committee reviewed the Water & Sewer budget
amendments for the first quarter, 2018. Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow and carried unanimously to
approve the budget amendments.

c) Proposal of Cleary Building Corp for New Pole Bldg. at City Services Center – T. Pinion explained that this
project was initially included in last year’s budget for $60,000 and carried over. Because the low bid received
was in excess of $75,000, we worked with Cleary Building to bring the project cost closer to budget. A transfer
of $531 will be required to cover this. Moved by Thurow, seconded by Sloan and carried unanimously to approve
the proposal of Cleary Building Corp in the amount of $60,531.

Discussion Items
a) FY 2019 Budget – Revenue forecast, preliminary estimates for budgeting and 2 year Budget forecast

Finance Director C. Haggard presented the pre-levy 2019 draft budget. Rebekah Stelling & Beth Persche addressed
the committee regarding the dismay at the postponement of the library expansion project.

b) City Attorney’s report on insurance claims
Currently there are only 2 pending claims. Nothing new to report.

Adjournment – Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow and carried to adjourn at 6:47pm.
Brenda Zeman, City Clerk

17



 

 

 

Minutes of Plan Commission Meeting July 17, 2018 

 

Call to Order – Phil Wedekind called the meeting of the Commission to order at 5:15 PM. 

 

Roll Call – Present were Phil Wedekind, Dennis Thurow, Roy Franzen, Pat Liston, Jim O’Neill, Tom Kolb, and 

Kate Fitzwilliams. 

 

Also in attendance were Mayor Palm, Administrator Geick, Tom Pinion, Anita LaCoursiere, Ruanne Schoonover, 

Jane and Greg Hammel, Carol Bassett, Tim Cummings, William McDonough, Greg Held, and Al Mueller.  

 

Call to Order 

a. Note compliance with the Open Meeting Law. Wedekind noted compliance with the Open Meeting Law. 

b. Agenda Approval: It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Franzen to approve the agenda as posted. Motion 

carried unanimously.  

c. Minutes Approval: It was moved by O’Neill, seconded by Liston to approve the minutes of the June 19, 2018 

meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Public Invited to Speak (Any citizen has the right to speak on any item of business that is on the agenda for 

Commission action if recognized by the presiding officer.) –  There were no speakers.  

 

Public Hearing 

a. Public Hearing to consider the request of Wisconsin Power & Light (Owner) and American Transmission 

Company (Applicant) for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the expansion of the existing substation and the 

construction of a new self-contained control house in a B-1 Central Business zoning dist5rict, located at their 

Lynn Street substation on the south side of the Baraboo River between Vine and Walnut Streets, 125 Vine 

Street, City of Baraboo – There being no speakers, the hearing was declared closed. 

 

b. Public Hearing to Consider the request of Linda Porter and Ruanne Schoonover for a Conditional Use Permit to 

convert the existing two-unit condominium to two Side-by-Side single-family residential dwellings in a R-1A 

Single-Family Residential zoning district, located at 421/423 10th Avenue, City of Baraboo – There be no 

speakers, the hearing was declared closed. 

 

c. Public Hearing to Consider the request of Greg Hammel for a Conditional Use Permit to convert the existing 

two-unit residential dwelling on Lot 1 of Springbrook Hills to two side-by-side single-family residential 

dwellings in a R-1A Single-Family Residential zoning district, located at 1410/1412 Lake Street, City of 

Baraboo -  There being no speakers, the hearing was declared closed. 

 

New Business 

a. Consideration of Wisconsin Power & Light’s (Owner) and American Transmission Company’s (Applicant) 

request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the expansion of the existing substation and the construction of a 

new self-contained control house in a B-1 Central Business zoning district, located at their Lynn Street 

substation on the south side of the Baraboo River between Vine and Walnut Streets, 125 Vine Street, City of 

Baraboo – Anita LaCoursiere, ATC addressed the Commission as the applicant for Wisconsin Power & Light’s 

request. She said the substation is at the end of its lifecycle and needs be upgraded. Pinion asked if the footprint 

of the substation will be expanded, LaCoursiere answered in the affirmative. LaCoursiere presented the plans 

for the expansion, security, and fence plans. Kolb questioned the clearance needed for landscaping. 

LaCoursiere stated that normally they do not put landscaping at substations for security. Kolb said that his issue 

is that the City spent hundreds of thousands dollars to reclaim the land along the riverfront and has done a 

Riverfront Design Guidelines, which includes that area of the substation, and this plan is ugly. He was hoping 

that eventually that this entire substation could be moved to some other location. She said that she has worked 

with Pinion regarding the layout that was planned for the substation. Franzen said that there is a Riverwalk 

down to Vine Street, and the plan was to have that riverwalk go all the way to Walnut Street, and he doesn’t see 

any plans that Power and Light is going to put in that riverwalk. LaCoursiere said that she does not believe that 

18



 

 

the topography at the river’s edge would allow that. Franzen said that there is some room, but not much. 

LaCoursiere said that she would leave this to Pinion because she has been working with him. She thought if a 

walkway and bike trail would be installed it would be on the sub property and then there would have to be 

retaining wall installed, if that were even possible. Franzen said that the City would have to get an easement, 

which they do not have now, but it was in the plan. LaCoursiere asked if this was on the north side or south, 

and it was stated that it was the plan to have on both sides. She said that she does not remember that being 

discussed, but that would be an issue. Kolb asked if surrounding property owners were contacted and 

LaCoursiere answered no because they are expanding on their property; however, Pinion stated that 

surrounding properties within 200 feet were notified regarding the public hearing. Mayor Palm stated that the 

substation along the beltline coming into Madison has a fence, but it is fielded and has mesh going through it to 

diminish the view to the inside. Liston said that he feels that there are things that can be done to the substation 

to make it fit better into the community. It was stated that the City has been interested in moving this substation 

since 2006-2007. LaCoursiere said that the work being done on the substation is on WP&L land, ATC are the 

people that are upgrading and replacing their facilities, and that is because there are two or three separate lines 

that come in and they have to service those, and with sensitive customers, they can’t have outages. The 

Commission feels that there is some way to dress it up. LaCoursiere said that they are not the owners, they are 

just replacing a fence, and ATC standards state that when a fence is replaced, it has to be with a no cut, no 

climb fence. O’Neill asked if the no cut, no climb fence could be made to be less conspicuous. LaCoursiere said 

that there is a vinyl that be woven in, which could be considered as an option. It was asked if the fence that is 

existing could be dressed up also, and it was stated that the fence belongs to WP&L, and they would have to 

agree to it, and there would be a cost. Kolb asked if it would unreasonable to postpone this request until next 

month to allow the City to investigate some of the issues. Pinion said that he believed under City Ordinances, 

the Commission has 30 days to decide on Conditional Use permits, and the next meeting would be more than 

30 days. Kolb then asked if the Commission could hold a special meeting because he feels that these are 

significant issues. Pinion answered in the affirmative and stated that it the nature of the conditional use, what 

triggers the need for that is the addition to the building. He said that the existing substation is a permitted, 

conforming use, and anytime that changes, or there is a new use, it is the subject of the conditional use. He said 

if the City wanted to negotiate with the property owner to improve the appearance, he is not sure that is part of 

this conditional use permit proceeding, and he would have to defer to the City Attorney’s advice on that. Geick 

said that he did speak with Attorney Truman, and the City can place conditions on landscaping and other things 

around this facility within the new State law requirements, especially because the City did go through the 

process of creating the plans that we have right now. He said that those plans were given to ATC and to Alliant. 

He feels that the Commission can have a meeting within the next 30 days and have some time to work out the 

details. Kolb moved to postpone the request and the Plan Commission meet within the next 30 days so that the 

Commission can look at some of the other issues. O’Neill seconded the motion. On roll call vote for the 

motion, Ayes – Thurow, Franzen, Liston, O’Neill, Kolb, Fitzwilliams, and Wedekind. Nay – 0, motion carried 

7-0.  

 

b. Consideration of Linda Porter and Ruannae Schoonover for a Conditional Use Permit to convert the existing 

two-unit condominium to two Side-by-Side single-family residential dwellings in an R-1A Single-Family 

Residential zoning district, located at 421/423 10th Avenue, City of Baraboo – Pinion said that this request is 

something that the Commission routinely considered in the past. He said that this particular Condominium was 

considered in 2007 for the same reason, the Commission recommended approval; however, when it came time 

to file the appropriate documents, because it is a Condominium Association, there has to be a document 

dissolving the Condo Association. He said that when it was submitted to the County Property Lister it was 

rejected because the Condo Association was still intact. Therefore, since the Conditional Use Permit was not 

fulfilled within 12 months it becomes void. Pinion said that Schoonover and her neighbor have requested to 

repeat history and dissolve the condominium association, create the two side-by-side attached dwellings per 

the CUP; the CSM is included in the packet as well as the covenants that were prepared by the attorney at that 

time. Pinion said that those two components comply with the City’s CUP requirements. He said that the City 

would have to see documentation of the Condominium dissolution before any of the documents could be 

recorded. It was stated that Schoonover found the document entitled Declaration of Removal from 

Condominium Ownership by 10th Avenue. Pinion said that the document has not been recorded, but all the 

pieces are in place. It was moved by Liston to approve the Conditional Use Permit as requested, conditioned 

upon the Declaration of Condominium dissolution be recorded. Fitzwilliams seconded the motion. On roll call 

19



 

 

vote for the motion, Ayes – Thurow, Franzen, Liston, O’Neill, Kolb, Fitzwilliams, and Wedekind. Nay – 0, 

motion carried 7-0. 

 
c. Review and approve a two-lot Certified Survey Map to convert the two-unit 10th Avenue Condominium No. 1 

to side-by-side single-family residential attached dwellings at 421/423 10th Avenue – It was moved Liston, 
seconded by Kolb to approve the CSM as presented. On roll call vote for the motion, Ayes – Franzen, Liston, 
O’Neill, Kolb, Fitzwilliams, Wedekind, and Thurow. Nay-0, motion carried 7-0. 

 
d. Consideration of Greg Hammel’s request for a Conditional Use Permit to convert the existing two-unit 

residential dwelling on Lot 1 of Springbrook Hills to two side-by-side single-family residential dwellings in an 
R-1A Single-Family Residential zoning district, located at 1410/1412 Lake Street, City of Baraboo – Greg 
Hammel addressed the Commission. Pinion said that this is a traditional two-unit duplex and not a Condo 
Associations. He said that Hammel has an attorney working on the covenants; therefore, there is no draft 
included, but the City typically will not sign the CSM in the absence of those documents. It was moved by 
Liston, seconded by O’Neill to approve the CUP as requested. On roll call vote for the motion, Ayes – Liston, 
O’Neill, Kolb, Fitzwilliams, Wedekind, Thurow, and Franzen. Nay – 0, motion carri3ed 7-0. 

 
e. Review and approve a two-lot Certified Survey Map to convert the existing two-unit residential dwelling on 

Lot 10 in Springbrook Hill Subdivision to side-by-side single-family residential attached dwellings at 
1410/1412 Lake Street – It was moved by O’Neill, seconded by Franzen to approve the CSM as presented. On 
roll call vote for the motion, Ayes – O’Neill, Kolb, Fitzwilliams, Wedekind, Thurow, Franzen, and Liston. Nay 
– 0, motion carried 7-0. 

 
f. Consideration of Request to vacate Outlot 4 of the First Addition to Pleasant View Subdivision – a 20-foot side 

unimproved pedestrian path right-of-way on the east side of Manassas Drive between Lots 25 and 26 of the 
First Addition to Pleasant View Subdivision – Carol Bassett introduced herself to the Commission. Pinion said 
that Bassett contacted him, she is the owner closest on the north side of the outlot. He said that she has an 
existing deck that is only a few steps off the ground going into a side entrance. He said that she would like to 
expand that to make it easier going in and out; however, the City’s rules are that it cannot be closer than 6-feet 
from the lot line. Therefore, to Bassett’s amazement, there is 32 feet between her deck and her neighbor’s to the 
south deck and neither were aware that there was 20-foot reserved right-of-way for a pedestrian path. Bassett 
and her neighbor have submitted a petition asking for this to be vacated. Pinion gave the background of the 
entire Pleasant view Subdivision, from preliminary to existing. Liston asked if the City owned the property. 
Pinion stated that it is Outlot 4, which was dedicated as part of the Final Plat to the City. Pinion then gave the 
background of ownership of parcels. Pinion said that if the Commission favorably reviews this petition, there 
will be a public hearing, notice published, and then the Council will consider a resolution to formally vacate 
that right-of-way. It was moved by Liston to move this to Council with a positive recommendation. Kolb 
seconded. Franzen questioned ownership after vacation. Pinion said that anytime a right-of-way is vacated, it is 
split down the middle and half goes to each property owner at no cost. On roll call vote for the motion, Ayes – 
Kolb, Fitzwilliams, Wedekind, Thurow, Franzen, Liston, and O’Neill. Nay – 0, motion carried 7-0, 

 
g. Consideration of a Request from Bruce Braithwaite to rezone the 5.3-acre parcel on the north side of South 

Blvd. in the SE¼ of the NW¼ of Section 3, T11N, R6E, located at 1420 South Blvd. and formerly occupied by 
the Honey Boy Mobile Home Park, from MH-P, Mobile Home Park to a B-3, Highway Oriented Business 
zoning classification by Bruce Braithwaite – Pinion said that Bruce Braithwaite told him that something came 
up and he would be unable to attend the meeting. He said that the property is listed with a realtor and has been 
discussed at the staff level.  He said that if the owner had not initiated this, rezoning could only happen under 
two instances, the property owner petitions, or the City undertakes the action. Pinion said that everything to and 
south and east is zoned B-3, and I-4 to the west; therefore, Braithwaite showed some interest in zoning it to a 
Highway Oriented Business, which is a little less permissive, it’s more commercial than I-4 allows industrial 
uses as well. Pinion feels that this is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and a very appropriate 
request given the fact that the park is closed and listed for sale. Liston feels that there are more issues other than 
rezoning, because it is such a mess. He said that he would like to hear something from Braithwaite such as 
when the rest of the trailers will be out of there, and what he is going to do to clean up the property. It was the 
consensus of the Commission to take no action due to the absence of the representative, and will be placed on 
the next meeting agenda.  

 
h. Consideration of a Request by Capitol Housing III, LLC to review the SIP in accordance with Step 4 of the 

Planned Development process to construct a 70-unit multi-family residential complex, located at 325 Lynn 
Street, in a B-1 Central Business zoning district – Greg Held, Knothe Bruce Architects introduced himself to 
the Commission. Pinion gave the background for this project. Pinion said that final step in the planning 

20



 

 

development process is the specific implementation plan, which the Commission deferred action on that for 
additional detail. He said that the Developer’s design team is here to provide additional detail of the building 
materials, color renderings, final site plan, and landscaping plan, which is what the Commission asked for. 
Kolb questioned the lighting. Pinion said that the site lighting was not included due to being technical pieces, 
and the stormwater management plan is being prepared, as well as the site lighting plan. He said that in the past 
the Commission has allowed those to be administratively reviewed and approved. Held gave the Commission a 
detailed presentation of the revised site plan. He said that they have gotten some better grades. He said that 
there was talk about cleaning up some of vegetation along the river; however, it sounds like this is going to be a 
separate permit obtained from the DNR, so it is not really addressed in the presentation. Pinion said that site has 
a surface feature for stormwater management, called a vial filtration facility. Although, that may lend itself to 
this site, due to the topography, it is his understanding that the developers are looking more into an 
underground system so that the green space is available to the tenants. Held then presented the color renderings, 
and materials being used on the building. Pinion stated that the name of the development will be River Ridge 
and feels that it is a very fitting name. It was moved by Liston, seconded by Franzen to approve the SIP as 
presented. On roll call vote for the motion, Ayes – Fitzwilliams, Wedekind, Thurow, Franzen, Liston, O’Neill, 
and Kolb. Nay – 0, motion carried 7-0. 

 
i. Discussion of Wisconsin Act 67 and its effect on local zoning authority – It was the wish of Liston that 

Attorney Truman was available for discussion. It was stated that she was at a Library Board meeting. Pinion 
stated that it describes that the City is pretty much handcuffed, so he is not sure how much flexibility the City 
has; however, Attorney Truman thinks that there is some. He said that the burden is on the City to defend the 
conditions that they might want to impose. Franzen asked if the City could pass new laws to make it easier to 
impose conditions. Pinion said that if the worst-case scenario was taken, it eliminates the City’s ability to really 
regulate conditional uses. Pinion said something that was discussed conceptually it was allow the City to create 
a new special zoning district that has very specific uses and  eliminates the ones that are not wanted, so the City 
is not obligated to approve them, but that would be a public hearing for changing the rezoning ordinance. He 
also said that there would probably be a lot of input from the public. He said that Mayor talked ab out starting 
an ADHOC committee to start reviewing some of those things. Alderman Kolb suggested that the City revisit 
design guidelines for that corridor, so it is not a 30-second solution, or a 30-day solution. Mayor Palm said that 
he has been thinking a lot about an ADHOC Committee and Chapter 17 has not been looked at for 12 years. He 
said what the legislation has done; it may provide an opportunity to look at the zoning ordinance to see if there 
are things that can be done to help ourselves.  
 

Adjournment - It was moved by Liston, seconded by Kolb to adjourn at 6:28 p.m. The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Phil Wedekind, Mayor Designee     

21



Baraboo Economic Development Commission
Business Walk Review Ad Hoc Committee

Meeting Minutes
July 31, 2018

I. Call to Meeting to Order and Note Compliance with Open Meeting Law
The meeting was called to order by Andrew Bingle at 5:48 PM in the Room 205 of the Baraboo
Municipal Building, 101 South Blvd., Baraboo, WI. The meeting was noticed in conformance with
Wisconsin State Statues regarding open meetings.

II. Roll Call
Present: Bingle, Taylor
Absent: Ayar, Caflisch, White
Other: Patrick Cannon

Due to the lack of quorum, the meeting was not permitted to proceed.

Andrew Bingle Patrick Cannon
Chairperson Recorder

22



BarabooEconom icDevelopm entCom m ission
M eetingM inutes

A ugust2,2018

I. CalltoM eetingtoO rderandN oteCom pliancew ithO penM eetingL aw
ChairJim Bow erscalledthem eetingtoorderat5:30 P M attheBarabooM unicipalBuilding,101 S outh
Blvd.,R oom 205,Baraboo,W I. T hem eetingw asnoticedinconform ancew ithW isconsinS tateS tatues
regardingopenm eetings.

II. R ollCall
P resent: Bow ers,Alt,Ayar,Bingle,Caflisch,P alm ,P latt-Gibson,R eppen,T aylor,W astlund,W hite
Absent: U m hoefer,Johnson
O ther: EdGeick,P atrickCannon

III. A pproveAgenda
M otiontoapprovetheagendaaspresented
P latt-Gibson(1);Alt(2)
Aye: Allviavoicevote
N ay: N one

IV. A pproveM inutes
M otiontoapprovethem inutesaspresentedforJune7,2018 aspresented
Caflisch(1);Alt(2)
Aye: Allviavoicevote
N ay: N one

V. P ublicCom m ent
N one

VI. O ldBusiness
a. U pdatesonDevelopm entA ctivities

EdGeickreportedonthefollow ing:

 325 L ynnS t.projecthasbeenapprovedandw illrequireaDevelopm entAgreem ent

 T here-zoningrequestfortheT railerP arkw aspostponed

 S aukCounty isw orkingontheirhousingim itative

 T heAirportconstructionisunderw ay

b. U pdatesfrom P lanCom m issionandCouncil
M ayorP alm spokeonthefollow ingitem s:

 ConditionalU seP erm itforautorepairbusinessw asdeniedby P lanCom m ission. Afterlegal
review ,theCity CouncilapprovedtheCU P baseduponchangesinS tatelaw

 T heCity hasform edacom m itteetoreview thecurrentzoningordinance

 M ayorisdiscussingthe“ darkstore” situationw ithJay S m ithfrom T eelM anufacturing

 T heCity hostedam eetingregardingtheclosingoftheaddictioncenterby S S M .

c. U pdatefrom econom icdevelopm entpartnersandcollaborators

 M r.W hiteindicatedthattheS CDC housingstudy shouldbecom pletedw ithintw ow eeks

 M r.BingleannouncedthatICFw illbeclosedin2019 duetoconstruction. T hey areinthe
processofobtainingapop-upshopduringthattim e.

 M ayorP alm indicatedthatthey City hadastrategicplanningsessionforfuturegoals

 M r.T aylorindicatedthattheBankisdoingw ellandindicatedhissupportfortheChildren’s
M useum

23



 M r.AltgaveanupdateontheEastsideCorridorsub-com m ittee. HeindicatedthatDO T has
beensentacopy ofthedocum ent. Healsoindicatedthatacopy ofthereportw illbe
distributedtotheproperty ow nersalong8th Ave.

 Dr.Ayarupdatedthecom m itteeonthestatusofthem ergeratthecam pus. Hefeltitw as
m ovingalongw ell.

 M r.R eppenindicatedthatS ervoishavingadifficulttim einfillingpositions.

 M s.W astlundindicatedthatindicatedthattheCDA hasclosedonthebuildingw ithU S DA and
they arew orkingonstrategicplanningfortheiractivities

 M s.Caflischupdatedonthefollow ing:
a. T heparadew asasuccess. T hecrow dw asestim atedtobebetw een25,000 to30,000

people.
b. S healsoindicatedthatDiscoverW isconsinisdoingashow regardingtheBarabooarea
c. T hecom m unity brandingeffortisongoingandshouldbecom pletedsoon
d. T heCham berhashostedtw o“ lunchandlearn” program s. T hey havebeensuccessful
e. T heCham berVisitorCenterhasbeenextrem ely busy andthey havehiredtem porary

stafftoassist.

 M s.P latt-Gibsongaveabriefupdateonthehiringofanew Adm inistrator. S headdedthattw o
new Doctorsw illbestartinginS eptem ber.

 M r.Bow ersupdatedthecom m itteeontheconstructioninW estBaraboo. Healsoupdated
thestatusofthecanoelandingthatw asdestroyedduetotheheavy rains.

 S taffindicatedthattheM ayorandCDA ExecutiveDirectorw illbepresentingattheL eagueof
W isconsinM unicipalitiesw orkshopinAugust. U pdatesw erealsogivenontheDO A CL O S E
program andtheS aukCounty/L GIproject.

d. Considerationofdevelopm entofastrategicplanforBEDC
i. A dHocCom m itteeonEastsideCorridorS tudy

M r.Althadpreviously discussedthestatusoftheproject.
ii. A dHocCom m itteeonBusinessW alk

A m eetingw asscheduledbutfailedduetolackofquorum .
M r.Binglehasdraftedacoverlettertotheparticipantsoutliningw hathasbeen
com pletedbasedupontheprogram

VII. N ew Business
N one

VII. U pdateP artnerP resentationS chedule
S everalsuggestionsw erem aderegardingpossiblepresenters.

VIII. Com m issionerandCity S taffcom m ents
T heM ayorindicatedthatseveralpublicationshavefeaturedBarabooinrecentarticles

IX . A djournm ent
M otiontoadjournthem eetingw asm adeat6:37pm .
T aylor(1);W hite(2)
Aye: Allviavoicevote
N ay: N one

Jim Bow ers P atrickCannon
Chairperson R ecorder

24



Administrative Committee                                    August 10, 2018 
Present:  Alderpersons John Alt, John Ellington, Michael Zolper 
Absent:   
Also Present: Mayor, Mike Palm; City Administrator, Ed Geick; Attorney, Emily Truman; Police Chief, Mark 

Schauf; City Clerk, Brenda Zeman, City Engineer Thomas Pinion 
 
The meeting was called to order by Chairman John Alt at 12:00PM CDT., noting compliance with the Open Meetings 
Law. 
 
Moved by Ellington to approve the minutes of July 2, 2018, seconded by Zolper and unanimously carried.  
 
Motion by Zolper to approve agenda, seconded by Ellington and unanimously carried. 
 
Review and recommendation to the Common Council to update the Council Member’s Handbook. 
Atty. Truman noted that at the last Administrative meeting, she was asked to revise the policy so that a quorum of 
the Council could be considered a simple majority of the Council.  Per State statues, a quorum of the Council has 
to be 2/3.  Because this is something we cannot change, Atty. Truman did not provide any other changes to the 
handbook today.  She informed the Committee that in the near future, there could be some other changes to 
Chapter 2 of the City Code, that is the Common Council section of the City Code, but for today’s meeting, none of 
that, at this point, would change the handbook.   
 
Ellington questioned the Library Board and having a member from the Council.  The Mayor notes that we have 
Council members on the Plan Commission and the Parks Commission, he sees no reason not to have someone 
on the Library Board because there are budgetary numbers involved.  He agrees that if we are going to be doing a 
revision, this is something that could be part of the discussion for Council to vote on.  Atty. Truman agrees that 
there could be additional discussion on this matter when the Chapter 2 revisions are brought before the Committee.  
In terms of the handbook, what is before the Committee today is what is current in the code.  The Committee could 
continue to hold this at the committee level until Chapter 2 has been updated and then update the handbook to 
correspond with that or they could recommend approving this now knowing that if changes to Chapter 2 does 
happen we would have to make the changes concurrently to the handbook.  Her suggestion would be to recommend 
the approval to Council and then as staff starts to review Chapter 2 we are not feeling quite so pressured.   
 
Motion by Ellington to recommend Council adopt the amended Council Handbook, seconded by Zolper and carried 
unanimously.   
   
Consider recommendation to the Common Council to change the City Code Chapter 14.13, “Private Swimming 
Pools” for the purpose of allowing pool covers as a substitution to fences – referred to in section (4) “Fences.”   
Atty. Truman advised that this was at the last Administrative Committee meeting.  Because it died for a lack of a 
2nd, it should be treated as a new discussion.  Zolper confirmed that from a legal standpoint, it does not go against 
any of our rules for insurance; the insurance for the City is not liable.  Atty. Truman noted that she had talked with 
our CVMIC representative and there are no concerns about any liability for the City.  This is really a policy decision 
for the Committee.  The pool cover that Zolper was specifically talking about is a keyed system that covers the pool 
automatically.  He feels this would be the safest pool cover possible.  Zolper asked Chief Schauf for any comments 
from the Police Department, do they have any concerns?  Chief Schauf noted that with this specific system, they 
do still have to have the winter cover.  While the winter cover will take the weight of some water, Chief Schauf is 
not sure it would is not take the weight of a person.  If we were making a change, Zolper would want this to be a 
requirement.  This is the type of cover he was talking about, one that a person could stand up on.  Not any pool 
cover would be accepted.  Chief Schauf states that some of the concerns that come up is when they forget to close 
the pool cover and if the committee does decide to change the policy, making sure that it’s articulable so people 
know what they can get.  Atty. Truman pointed out that her memo references word for word how it’s included in the 
International Building Code what’s permitted for pool covers.  She’s attached those specs and her suggestion is 
that if the committee wanted to recommend change, that the change to the ordinance follow the International 
Building Code that “requires fencing around a private outdoor swimming pool with the following exception: a 

25



swimming pool with power safety cover or a spa with a safety cover compliant to ASTM F 1346-91”.  ASTM stands 
for American Society of Testing Materials.  This is one suggestion if they want to move away from fences but wanted 
to ensure a certain type of cover has to be part of it.  Ellington questions if we will have a policing issue making 
sure everybody’s covered.  Alt questions how many are in compliance right now.  Chief Schauf notes that there are 
several pools that are not in compliance, some that were put in prior to us having a fencing ordinance.  City Engineer 
Pinion confirms that residents are required to have a building permit to put in a pool.  Zolper noted the Test Methods 
for Safety Covers and the Static Load Test of 485 lbs. to be a pretty strong cover.  Zolper feels if they adopt a pool 
cover based on these standards, it seems like a pretty safe cover.  There are just as many concerns with fences 
such as not people not latching the fences.  Chief Schauf questioned if ASTM was a stamp that the pool covers 
would get on them.  The Mayor does not believe this is the case.  Zolper is looking to have some options for the 
owner if the technology is there available to keep the population safe; that is his biggest concern.  Alt notes that 
this may be more appealing sometimes than fencing because fencing does deteriorate and people do not maintain 
them.  Zolper noted that this was the concern of the resident; the resident lives in an area where he wants the view.  
Alt asked Atty. Truman about her recent search at other communities and she noted that it was an interesting mix.  
For those communities that allow pool covers, they did not have any requirements in their codes.  Atty. Truman 
encourage they specify some degree of standards for pool covers.  Zolper has to assume that a pool company 
selling a pool to their client has thought of engineering needed to keep families safe.  It’s up to the homeowners 
insurance if that covers them or not, but if the City is not held liable and the technology is there to keep us safe, 
then the choice seems like a nice option if someone wants to keep their view.   
 
Zolper made a motion to postpone a decision to the next meeting, seconded by Ellington and carried unanimously.   
 
Tavern Operator License Appeal for Eric Kaun 
Chief Schauf informed the Committee that per the Code, the City utilizes an application process which must be 
completed.  All convictions must be listed on the application because under Chapter 125 of Statues we can consider 
those when determining whether a person should or should not receive an Operator’s License.  On Mr. Kauns’ 
application, question #7, “Have you ever been convicted for a violation of any federal laws, state laws of Wisconsin 
or any other state, as well as any county or municipal violations?” He indicated “No.”  When the Police Department 
completed their check, they found 3 convictions for drug related offenses.  Based on the findings of that and it not 
appearing in the ordinance by our code it is an automatic denial by the department head and referral to the 
Administrative Committee.  Atty. Truman informs the committee that the applicant has the right to appeal the 
decision; the Committee has to make a recommendation to Council to either approve or deny the application.   
 
Eric Kaun, S3163 W. Lake Virginia Rd Reedsburg WI, appeared before the committee and told the committee that 
he does have a reason for answering “no” on the application.  He went through plea bargains and 2 years of 
probation and everything was supposed to be dropped.  He was never told he was convicted.  He wasn’t trying to 
hide it, he just personally did not know he had the convictions.  He was trying not to be malicious.  
 
Atty. Truman advises the Committee that they need a motion to either recommend approving his application or 
denying it.  Chief Schauf includes that it can either be approved, approved conditionally, or denied.  The big 
difference between a Conditional Operator and a full Operator is that a Conditional is a year by year.   
 
Neil Caflisch, 124 4th Avenue Baraboo WI addressed the Committee. This is the second time he has been here and 
the last time the person was issued a conditional.  He feels Eric has to work some place and he is just asking the 
Council to recommend a Conditional Operator’s License and go year by year.  
 
Eric states that his first conviction was when he was 19, he is 28 now.  Schauf confirms the first conviction was 
2010, subsequent convictions were both in 2013, similar offenses.   
 
Motion by Ellington to recommend approving a Conditional Operator’s License to Eric Kaun, seconded by Zolper 
and carried unanimously.  Eric Kaun and Neil Caflisch were both provided agendas for the August 14th Council 
meeting.   
 

26



Consider applications for keeping Chickens 
Clerk Zeman noted that this new application was received within the last few weeks.  CSO Goetz has approved the 
application as well as Chief Schauf.  The neighbors were all notified and given until August 3 rd to dispute the 
application.  Nothing was received by the Clerk’s office regarding this application.   
 
Motion by Zolper to approve the chicken application for Melissa Barnes, seconded by Ellington and unanimously 
carried.   
 
Member comments 
The next meeting will be Friday, September 7, 2018 at 12:00PM CDT.  Meeting location will be 101 South 
Boulevard.  Moved by Ellington to adjourn, seconded by Zolper and unanimously carried.  Meeting adjourned at 
12:39PM CDT. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Brenda Zeman, City Clerk 

27


